

LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES

**SB137**

# Bill as Introduced

SB 137 - AS INTRODUCED

2021 SESSION

21-1073  
04/06

SENATE BILL

**137**

AN ACT

relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

SPONSORS:

Sen. Bradley, Dist 3

COMMITTEE:

Commerce

---

ANALYSIS

This bill changes the hourly rate for tipped employee contingent on an increase in the federal minimum wage.

---

Explanation:

Matter added to current law appears in ***bold italics***.

Matter removed from current law appears [~~in brackets and struckthrough.~~]

Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

*In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Twenty One*

AN ACT                   relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

*Be it Enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court convened:*

1           1 Minimum Hourly Rate; Tipped Employees. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 279:21  
2 to read as follows:

3 Unless otherwise provided by statute, no person, firm, or corporation shall employ any employee at  
4 an hourly rate lower than that set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as amended. Tipped  
5 employees of a restaurant, hotel, motel, inn or cabin, or ballroom who customarily and regularly  
6 receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the customers will receive a base rate from the  
7 employer of not less than ~~[45 percent of the applicable minimum wage]~~ **\$3.27 per hour**. If an  
8 employee shows to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the actual amount of wages received at  
9 the end of each pay period did not equal the minimum wage for all hours worked, the employer shall  
10 pay the employee the difference to guarantee the applicable minimum wage. The limitations  
11 imposed hereby shall be subject to the following exceptions:

12           2 Contingency. Section 1 of this act shall take effect on the date the federal minimum wage is  
13 increased from the federal minimum wage in effect on the effective date of this act.

14           3 Effective Date.

15           I. Section 1 of this act shall take effect as provided in section 2 of this act.

16           II. The remainder of this act shall take effect upon its passage.

SB 137 - AS AMENDED BY THE SENATE

04/01/2021 0983s

2021 SESSION

21-1073

04/06

SENATE BILL **137**

AN ACT relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

SPONSORS: Sen. Bradley, Dist 3

COMMITTEE: Commerce

---

ANALYSIS

This bill changes the hourly rate for tipped employee contingent on an increase in the federal minimum wage.

-----

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in ***bold italics***.  
Matter removed from current law appears ~~[in brackets and struck through.]~~  
Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

*In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Twenty One*

AN ACT relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

*Be it Enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court convened:*

1 1 Minimum Hourly Rate; Tipped Employees. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA  
2 279:21 to read as follows:

3 Unless otherwise provided by statute, no person, firm, or corporation shall employ any employee at  
4 an hourly rate lower than that set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as amended. Tipped  
5 employees of a restaurant, *cigar bar as defined in RSA 178:20-a, II*, hotel, motel, inn or cabin, or  
6 ballroom who customarily and regularly receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the  
7 customers will receive a base rate from the employer of not less than ~~[45 percent of the applicable~~  
8 ~~minimum wage]~~ *\$3.27 per hour. Tipped employees who are licensed as secondary game*  
9 *operators pursuant to RSA 287-D and who customarily and regularly receive more than*  
10 *\$30 a month in tips directly from the customers, will receive a base rate from the employer*  
11 *of not less than \$7.25 per hour. If such an employee shows to the satisfaction of the*  
12 *commissioner that the actual amount of wages received at the end of each pay period did*  
13 *not equal the federal statutory minimum per hour for all hours worked, the employer shall*  
14 *pay the employee the difference to guarantee the federal statutory minimum hourly rate. If*  
15 *an employee shows to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the actual amount of wages received*  
16 *at the end of each pay period did not equal the minimum wage for all hours worked, the employer*  
17 *shall pay the employee the difference to guarantee the applicable minimum wage. The limitations*  
18 *imposed hereby shall be subject to the following exceptions:*

19 2 Contingency. Section 1 of this act shall take effect on the date the federal minimum wage is  
20 increased from the federal minimum wage in effect on the effective date of this act.

21 3 Effective Date.

22 I. Section 1 of this act shall take effect as provided in section 2 of this act.

23 II. The remainder of this act shall take effect upon its passage.

SB 137 - AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE

04/01/2021 0983s  
4Jun2021... 1596h

2021 SESSION

21-1073  
04/06

SENATE BILL **137**

AN ACT relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

SPONSORS: Sen. Bradley, Dist 3

COMMITTEE: Commerce

---

ANALYSIS

This bill changes the hourly rate for tipped employee contingent on an increase in the federal minimum wage.

---

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in ***bold italics***.  
Matter removed from current law appears ~~[in brackets and struckthrough.]~~  
Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.

SB 137 - AS AMENDED BY THE HOUSE

04/01/2021 0983s  
4Jun2021... 1596h

21-1073  
04/06

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

*In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Twenty One*

AN ACT relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

*Be it Enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court convened:*

1 1 Minimum Hourly Rate; Tipped Employees. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 279:21  
2 to read as follows:

3 Unless otherwise provided by statute, no person, firm, or corporation shall employ any employee  
4 at an hourly rate lower than that set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as amended. Tipped  
5 employees of a restaurant, *cigar bar as defined in RSA 178:20-a, II*, hotel, motel, inn or cabin, or  
6 ballroom who customarily and regularly receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the  
7 customers will receive a base rate from the employer of not less than ~~[45 percent of the applicable~~  
8 ~~minimum wage]~~ *the minimum direct wage as set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as*  
9 *amended, but in no case less than \$3.27 per hour. If such* an employee shows to the satisfaction  
10 of the commissioner that the actual amount of wages received at the end of each pay period did not  
11 equal the minimum wage for all hours worked, the employer shall pay the employee the difference to  
12 guarantee the ~~[applicable]~~ *federal statutory* minimum wage. The limitations imposed hereby shall  
13 be subject to the following exceptions:

14 2 Contingency. Section 1 of this act shall take effect on the date the federal minimum wage is  
15 increased from the federal minimum wage in effect on the effective date of this act.

16 3 Effective Date.

17 I. Section 1 of this act shall take effect as provided in section 2 of this act.

18 II. The remainder of this act shall take effect upon its passage.



CHAPTER 153  
SB 137 - FINAL VERSION

04/01/2021 0983s  
4Jun2021... 1596h

2021 SESSION

21-1073  
04/06

SENATE BILL **137**

AN ACT relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

SPONSORS: Sen. Bradley, Dist 3

COMMITTEE: Commerce

---

ANALYSIS

This bill changes the hourly rate for tipped employee contingent on an increase in the federal minimum wage.

---

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in ***bold italics***.  
Matter removed from current law appears ~~[in brackets and struckthrough.]~~  
Matter which is either (a) all new or (b) repealed and reenacted appears in regular type.

CHAPTER 153  
SB 137 - FINAL VERSION

04/01/2021 0983s  
4Jun2021... 1596h

21-1073  
04/06

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

*In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Twenty One*

AN ACT relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

*Be it Enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court convened:*

1 153:1 Minimum Hourly Rate; Tipped Employees. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA  
2 279:21 to read as follows:

3 Unless otherwise provided by statute, no person, firm, or corporation shall employ any employee  
4 at an hourly rate lower than that set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as amended. Tipped  
5 employees of a restaurant, *cigar bar as defined in RSA 178:20-a, II*, hotel, motel, inn or cabin, or  
6 ballroom who customarily and regularly receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the  
7 customers will receive a base rate from the employer of not less than ~~[45 percent of the applicable~~  
8 ~~minimum wage]~~ *the minimum direct wage as set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as*  
9 *amended, but in no case less than \$3.27 per hour.* If *such* an employee shows to the satisfaction  
10 of the commissioner that the actual amount of wages received at the end of each pay period did not  
11 equal the minimum wage for all hours worked, the employer shall pay the employee the difference to  
12 guarantee the ~~[applicable]~~ *federal statutory* minimum wage. The limitations imposed hereby shall  
13 be subject to the following exceptions:

14 153:2 Contingency. Section 1 of this act shall take effect on the date the federal minimum wage  
15 is increased from the federal minimum wage in effect on the effective date of this act.

16 153:3 Effective Date.

17 I. Section 1 of this act shall take effect as provided in section 2 of this act.

II. The remainder of this act shall take effect upon its passage.

Approved: July 23, 2021

Effective Date:

I. Section 1 shall take effect as provided in section 2.

II. Remainder shall take effect July 23, 2021.

# Amendments

Amendment to SB 137

1 Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

2

3 1 Minimum Hourly Rate; Tipped Employees. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 279:21  
4 to read as follows:

5 Unless otherwise provided by statute, no person, firm, or corporation shall employ any employee at  
6 an hourly rate lower than that set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as amended. Tipped  
7 employees of a restaurant, hotel, motel, inn or cabin, or ballroom who customarily and regularly  
8 receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the customers will receive a base rate from the  
9 employer of not less than ~~[45 percent of the applicable minimum wage]~~ **\$3.27 per hour. Tipped**  
10 **employees who are licensed as secondary game operators pursuant to RSA 287-D and who**  
11 **customarily and regularly receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the**  
12 **customers, will receive a base rate from the employer of not less than \$7.25 per hour. If**  
13 **such an employee shows to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the actual amount of**  
14 **wages received at the end of each pay period did not equal the federal statutory minimum**  
15 **per hour for all hours worked, the employer shall pay the employee the difference to**  
16 **guarantee the federal statutory minimum hourly rate. If an employee shows to the satisfaction**  
17 **of the commissioner that the actual amount of wages received at the end of each pay period did not**  
18 **equal the minimum wage for all hours worked, the employer shall pay the employee the difference to**  
19 **guarantee the applicable minimum wage. The limitations imposed hereby shall be subject to the**  
20 **following exceptions:**

Sen. Bradley, Dist 3  
March 8, 2021  
2021-0700s  
04/06

Amendment to SB 137

1 Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

2

3 1 Minimum Hourly Rate; Tipped Employees. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 279:21  
4 to read as follows:

5 Unless otherwise provided by statute, no person, firm, or corporation shall employ any employee at  
6 an hourly rate lower than that set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as amended. Tipped  
7 employees of a restaurant, *cigar bar as defined in RSA 178:20-a, II*, hotel, motel, inn or cabin, or  
8 ballroom who customarily and regularly receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the  
9 customers will receive a base rate from the employer of not less than ~~[45 percent of the applicable~~  
10 ~~minimum wage]~~ *\$3.27 per hour. Tipped employees who are licensed as secondary game*  
11 *operators pursuant to RSA 287-D and who customarily and regularly receive more than*  
12 *\$30 a month in tips directly from the customers, will receive a base rate from the employer*  
13 *of not less than \$7.25 per hour. If such an employee shows to the satisfaction of the*  
14 *commissioner that the actual amount of wages received at the end of each pay period did*  
15 *not equal the federal statutory minimum per hour for all hours worked, the employer shall*  
16 *pay the employee the difference to guarantee the federal statutory minimum hourly rate. If*  
17 *an employee shows to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the actual amount of wages received*  
18 *at the end of each pay period did not equal the minimum wage for all hours worked, the employer*  
19 *shall pay the employee the difference to guarantee the applicable minimum wage. The limitations*  
20 *imposed hereby shall be subject to the following exceptions:*

Commerce  
March 23, 2021  
2021-0983s  
04/06

Amendment to SB 137

1 Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

2

3 1 Minimum Hourly Rate; Tipped Employees. Amend the introductory paragraph of RSA 279:21  
4 to read as follows:

5 Unless otherwise provided by statute, no person, firm, or corporation shall employ any employee at  
6 an hourly rate lower than that set forth in the federal minimum wage law, as amended. Tipped  
7 employees of a restaurant, *cigar bar as defined in RSA 178:20-a, II*, hotel, motel, inn or cabin, or  
8 ballroom who customarily and regularly receive more than \$30 a month in tips directly from the  
9 customers will receive a base rate from the employer of not less than ~~[45 percent of the applicable~~  
10 ~~minimum wage]~~ *\$3.27 per hour. Tipped employees who are licensed as secondary game*  
11 *operators pursuant to RSA 287-D and who customarily and regularly receive more than*  
12 *\$30 a month in tips directly from the customers, will receive a base rate from the employer*  
13 *of not less than \$7.25 per hour. If such an employee shows to the satisfaction of the*  
14 *commissioner that the actual amount of wages received at the end of each pay period did*  
15 *not equal the federal statutory minimum per hour for all hours worked, the employer shall*  
16 *pay the employee the difference to guarantee the federal statutory minimum hourly rate. If*  
17 *an employee shows to the satisfaction of the commissioner that the actual amount of wages received*  
18 *at the end of each pay period did not equal the minimum wage for all hours worked, the employer*  
19 *shall pay the employee the difference to guarantee the applicable minimum wage. The limitations*  
20 *imposed hereby shall be subject to the following exceptions:*

# Committee Minutes

**SENATE CALENDAR NOTICE**  
**Commerce**

Sen Harold French, Chair  
Sen Bill Gannon, Vice Chair  
Sen Jeb Bradley, Member  
Sen Donna Soucy, Member  
Sen Kevin Cavanaugh, Member

Date: March 2, 2021

**HEARINGS**

Tuesday	03/09/2021	
(Day)	(Date)	
Commerce	REMOTE 000	8:30 a.m.
(Name of Committee)	(Place)	(Time)

8:30 a.m.      **SB 137**      relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

8:45 a.m.      **SB 136-FN**      relative to the state minimum hourly rate.

Committee members will receive secure Zoom invitations via email.

Members of the public may attend using the following links:

1. Link to Zoom Webinar: <https://www.zoom.us/j/92005780172>
2. To listen via telephone: Dial (for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 1-312-626-6799, or 1-646-558-8656, or 1-301-715-8592, or 1-346-248-7799, or 1-669-900-9128, or 1-253-215-8782
3. Or iPhone one-tap: 13126266799,,92005780172# or 16465588656,,92005780172#
4. Webinar ID: [920 0578 0172](https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjBZdtriRnQdmg-2MPMiWrA)
5. To view/listen to this hearing on YouTube, use this link:  
<https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjBZdtriRnQdmg-2MPMiWrA>
6. To sign in to speak, register your position on a bill and/or submit testimony, use this link:  
<http://gencourt.state.nh.us/remotecommittee/senate.aspx>

The following email will be monitored throughout the meeting by someone who can assist with and alert the committee to any technical issues: [remotesenate@leg.state.nh.us](mailto:remotesenate@leg.state.nh.us) or call (603-271-6931).

**EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY FOLLOW**



**Sponsors:**

**SB 137**

Sen. Bradley

**SB 136-FN**

Sen. Soucy

Sen. Rosenwald

Sen. Sherman

Sen. D'Allesandro

Sen. Whitley

Sen. Perkins Kwoka

Sen. Cavanaugh

Sen. Watters

Sen. Prentiss

Aaron Jones 271-4063

Harold F. French

Chairman

# Senate Commerce Committee

*Aaron Jones 271-4063*

**SB 137**, relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

**Hearing Date:** March 9, 2021

**Time Opened:** 8:34 a.m.

**Time Closed:** 8:57 a.m.

**Members of the Committee Present:** Senators French, Bradley, Gannon and Soucy

**Members of the Committee Absent :** Senator Cavanaugh

**Bill Analysis:** This bill changes the hourly rate for tipped employee contingent on an increase in the federal minimum wage.

---

**Sponsors:**  
Sen. Bradley

---

**Who supports the bill:** Senator Jeb Bradley, Henry Veilleux (NH Lodging & Restaurant Association), Curtis Barry (Cigar Association of NH), Alicia Preston (NHCGOA), Robin Schnell, Michael Sauve, Dorothy Bauer, Rick Newman (NH Charitable Gaming Operators Association)

**Who opposes the bill:** Please refer to sign-in sheets

**Who is neutral on the bill:** Deputy Commission Rudy Ogden (NH DOL)

**Summary of testimony presented in support:**

Senator Jeb Bradley

- Currently, New Hampshire sets tipped wages at 45 percent of the applicable minimum wage, which is \$3.27 an hour. New Hampshire is the only state to do this.
- This bill would uncouple tipped wages as a percentage of the federal minimum wage, while maintaining the tipped wage at \$3.27 an hour.
- If the federal government raised the minimum wage to \$15 an hour, and the existing process stayed in place, then the tipped wage would increase to \$6.75 an hour. Senator Bradley said this would harm industries and the very employees that the minimum wage is intending to help.
- Senator Bradley introduced Amendment 21-0700s, which would add cigar bar and secondary gaming operator employees to the category of tipped wage workers. On average, workers in those industries earn between \$18 and \$20 an hour.

- This proposed change to tipped wages would only take effect if the federal government increases the minimum wage from its current level. In other words, if nothing changes, then Senator Bradley said there's no reason to change New Hampshire's current practice.

Henry Veilleux, on behalf of the New Hampshire Lodging & Restaurant Association

- As Senator Bradley stated, this bill was brought forward because it's likely that the minimum wage will be increased at the federal level.
- If the minimum wage is increased, Mr. Veilleux said this bill would keep tipped wages at their current level of \$3.27 an hour. However, if the minimum wage isn't increased at all, then the current law will remain in place.
- Currently, restaurants are having difficulties finding hourly workers that will work for anything less than \$12 an hour.
- If the minimum wage were to increase to \$15 an hour, then tipped wages in New Hampshire would more than double. Mr. Veilleux said this would have a significant impact on businesses. For example, one business he heard from said it would cost them up to \$500,000.
- **Senator Gannon** asked how many people were earning tipped wages and the minimum wage.
  - **Mr. Veilleux** asked Employment Security for that data, but he hadn't received an answer back. Presently, there are 40,000 people employed in the hospitality industry. He estimated that at least half of those employees earned tipped wages.
- **Senator Soucy** asked what tipped wages were in the surrounding New England states.
  - **Mr. Veilleux** said he knew that tipped wages were higher, but he wasn't sure of how much higher they actually were.
- **Senator Soucy** said that tipped wages were higher, and she believed that they weren't based on a percentage of the minimum wage. **Senator Soucy** asked if the other New England states set their own minimum wages.
  - According to the U.S. Department of Labor, **Mr. Veilleux** said that New Hampshire is the only state that sets tipped wages as a percentage of the minimum wage. The surrounding New England states have established their own minimum wages. If this bill were passed, the New Hampshire Legislature would have the authority to decide what the tipped wage should be. Under the current system, if the federal government makes a change in the minimum wage, then New Hampshire's tipped wage changes. This bill would let New Hampshire make its own decisions, not the federal government.

Curtis Barry, on behalf of the Cigar Association of New Hampshire

- The membership of the Cigar Association of New Hampshire consists of 5 owners and 1 manufacturer. Among them, they have between 4 and 5 cigar bar

licenses. In 2009, these licenses were created by the Legislature long after the establishment of the tipped wage statute.

- Often, cigar bars employ bartenders, which are typically tipped employees.
- Cigar bars face similar economic pressures that other hospitality businesses face.
- Mr. Barry urged the Committee to adopt Amendment 21-0700s, which would categorize employees of establishments governed under RSA 178 as being tipped employees.

Rick Newman, New Hampshire Charitable Gaming Operators Association

- The New Hampshire Charitable Gaming Operators Association represents 13 out of the 16 charity gaming facilities in the state. In total, they employ over 500 people.
- Mr. Newman said the Association supported Amendment 21-0700s, which would categorize dealers as tipped employees.
- In 2006, the Legislature created this new job category when charity gaming was formed.
- Employees that work in these facilities receive \$7.25 an hour. In addition, they receive substantial tips which range from \$14 to \$18 an hour at smaller locations to \$25 to \$30 an hour at busier locations in the southern section of the state.
- The revenue generated by charity gaming facilities is regulated by the Legislature; therefore, they cannot increase wagers to offset the additional costs created by an increase in the minimum wage.

#### **Summary of testimony presented in opposition:**

Viola Katusiime, Granite State Organizing Project

- According to an analysis from the National Women's Law Center, 79 percent of tipped workers are women.
- The poverty rate of workers in tipped industries is 11.3 percent.
- In New Hampshire, 12.9 percent of tipped workers are women of color.
- Women, which are overrepresented in the tipped industry, make 82 cents for every dollar a man makes. The tipped wage disparities that exist for women, particularly women of color, allow inequality to persist.
- As a state, Ms. Katusiime said New Hampshire should aim for policies that allow workers to thrive alongside businesses; however, this bill wouldn't make people's lives better.

#### **Neutral Information Presented:**

Rudy Ogden, Deputy Commissioner, New Hampshire Department of Labor

- Federally, the tipped wage is set at \$2.13 an hour.

- The most recent federal initiative to raise the minimum wage had a provision in it that would have phased out the federal tipped wage credit.
- If the tipped wage credit were phased out, then employers in New Hampshire who are covered by the federal Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) would have to at least pay what's required by that Act.
- While the hospitality industry didn't expect the tipped wage credit to be phased out, Deputy Commissioner Ogden didn't want to create employer confusion in New Hampshire if it did.

AJ

Date Hearing Report completed: March 12, 2021

# Speakers

# Commerce Committee Testify List for Bill SB137 on 2021-03-09

Support: 7 Oppose: 34 Neutral: 1 Total to Testify: 5

<b>Name</b>	<b>Email Address</b>	<b>Phone</b>	<b>Representing</b>	<b>Position</b>	<b>Testifying</b>
Veilleux Henry	hveilleux@sheehan.com	16034961296	NH Lodging & Restaurant Association	Support	Yes
Katusiime Viola	violakat@granitestateorganizing.org	603.668.8250	Granite State Organizing Project	Oppose	Yes
Barry Curtis	curtis@barrygr.com	(603) 496-45	Cigar Association of New Hampshire	Support	Yes
McClain Trysten	trystenmcclain@icloud.com	603.530.2474	Myself	Oppose	Yes
Bradley Jeb	jeb.bradley@leg.state.nh.us	603-271-3749	Myself SD 3 Jeb Bradley	Support	Yes
Holt David	davholt@aol.com	603.692.0349	Myself	Oppose	No
Cavanaugh Marilyn	wmcavanaugh@comcast.net	603.502.0205	Myself	Oppose	No
Preston Alicia	apsatti25@gmail.com	603.892.3215	NHCGOA	Support	No
Ogden Rudolph	rudolph.w.ogden@dol.nh.gov	603.271.8496	New Hampshire Dept of Labor	Neutral	No
Fawson Michelle	shellyfawson@gmail.com	508.930.6616	Myself	Oppose	No
Pattison Christine	Cspattison@comcast.net	603-851-1924	Myself	Oppose	No
Smiley Seth	Not Given	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Ostrowski Joan	jcmostrowski@gmail.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Henrichon Margaret	mhenrichon@comcast.net	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
St Germain Diane	Not Given	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Dooley Joleen	Joleen35@hotmail.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Graham Nancy	nancygraham806@gmail.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Donovan Julie	julie.donovan@juno.com	603.488.5967	Myself	Oppose	No
Schnell Robin	r.hary.schnell@gmail.com	518.366.9978	Myself	Support	No
West Christie	christiemwest@gmail.com	603.320.6261	Myself	Oppose	No
Staub Kathy	kstaub@comcast.net	603.624.0249	Myself	Oppose	No
Kinney Rev. Dr. Gail	gailhrdi@aol.com	Not Given	NH Conference United Church of Christ/Economic Justice Team	Oppose	No
Pawley Katherine	Not Given	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Hope Lucinda	lmhope46@gmail.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Jones Gisela	gisela1142@gmail.com	603.448.2940	Myself	Oppose	No

# Commerce Committee Testify List for Bill SB137 on 2021-03-09

Support: 7   Oppose: 34   Neutral: 1   Total to Testify: 5

<u>Name</u>	<u>Email Address</u>	<u>Phone</u>	<u>Representing</u>	<u>Position</u>	<u>Testifying</u>
Casino Joanne	joannecasino@comcast.net	603.746.3491	Myself	Oppose	No
Price Jessica	jessbells@gmail.com	978.618.2111	Myself	Oppose	No
Root Diane	droottrm@aol.com	16032987597	Myself	Oppose	No
Nelson Elizabeth	BethDavid@comcast.net	603.505.5617	Myself	Oppose	No
sauve michael	michael.s.sauve@gmail.com	603.267.8828	Myself	Support	No
Bauer Dorothy	dottiebauer@gmail.com	Not Given	Myself	Support	No
DeMark Richard	demarknh114@gmail.com	603.520.5582	Myself	Oppose	No
Lewandowski Jean	jlewando@hotmail.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Bruce Susan	susanb.red@mac.com	603.730.7078	Myself	Oppose	No
Zoeller Charles	caz3328@comcast.net	603.437.1824	Myself	Oppose	No
Fordey Nicole	nikkif610@gmail.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Larson Ruth	ruthlarson@msn.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No
Theberge Timothy	timtheberge@gmail.com	978.869.8356	Myself	Oppose	No
Hegfield Laura	laurahegfield@comcast.net	603.672.6521	Myself	Oppose	No
Vaughan Elizabeth	lizfvaughan@hotmail.com	603.921.0444	Myself	Oppose	No
Lucas Janet	janluca1953@gmail.com	16037267614	Myself	Oppose	No
Cutshall Catherine	vivadofamily@aol.com	Not Given	Myself	Oppose	No



# Testimony

## Aaron Jones

---

**From:** Cindy <lmhope46@gmail.com>  
**Sent:** Monday, March 8, 2021 2:30 PM  
**To:** Aaron Jones  
**Subject:** Constituent OPPOSED to SB137

Members of the Senate Commerce Committee —

We all know that NH's minimum wage is still \$7.25/hour, just like the Federal minimum wage.

Neither NH nor the Federal minimum wage will ever be lowered.

SB137 proposes that "no less than 45% of the minimum wage per hour" be changed to "no less than \$3.27 per hour".

Given that **45% of \$7.25 is \$3.27**, this bill would keep tipped employees at \$3.27 per hour even if the State of NH increases our minimum wage.

Therefore, I OPPOSE this bill, and I hope the majority of the members will also.

Sincerely,

Lucinda Hope, M.Ed.

# Voting Sheets

**Senate Commerce Committee**  
**EXECUTIVE SESSION RECORD**  
*2021-2022 Session.*

Bill # SB 137

Hearing date: 3/9/21

Executive Session date: 3/23/21

Motion of: AMENDMENT (07008) Vote: 4-1

Committee Member	Made by	Second	Yes	No
Sen. French, Chair	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Gannon, V-Chair	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Bradley	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Cavanaugh	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Soucy	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>

Motion of: OTP-A Vote: 3-2

Committee Member	Made by	Second	Yes	No
Sen. French, Chair	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Gannon, V-Chair	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Bradley	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Cavanaugh	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Soucy	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input checked="" type="checkbox"/>

Motion of: \_\_\_\_\_ Vote: \_\_\_\_\_

Committee Member	Made by	Second	Yes	No
Sen. French, Chair	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Gannon, V-Chair	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Bradley	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Cavanaugh	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>
Sen. Soucy	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>	<input type="checkbox"/>

Reported out by: SEN. GANNON

Notes: \_\_\_\_\_  
 \_\_\_\_\_  
 \_\_\_\_\_

# Committee Report

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE  
SENATE  
REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, March 23, 2021

THE COMMITTEE ON Commerce

to which was referred SB 137

AN ACT

relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

Having considered the same, the committee recommends that the Bill

OUGHT TO PASS WITH AMENDMENT

BY A VOTE OF: 3-2

AMENDMENT # 0983s

Senator Bill Gannon  
For the Committee

Aaron Jones 271-4063

**COMMERCE**

**SB 137**, relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.

Ought to Pass with Amendment, Vote 3-2.

Senator Bill Gannon for the committee.

## General Court of New Hampshire - Bill Status System

**Docket of SB137**

Docket Abbreviations

**Bill Title:** relative to the minimum hourly rate for tipped employees.**Official Docket of SB137.:**

<b>Date</b>	<b>Body</b>	<b>Description</b>
2/3/2021	S	<b>Introduced</b> 01/06/2021 and Referred to Commerce; <b>SJ 3</b>
3/3/2021	S	Remote <b>Hearing:</b> 03/09/2021, 08:30 am; Links to join the hearing can be found in the Senate Calendar; <b>SC 14</b>
3/24/2021	S	Committee Report: Ought to Pass with Amendment <b>#2021-0983s</b> , 04/01/2021; <b>SC 17</b>
4/1/2021	S	Committee Amendment <b>#2021-0983s</b> , <b>RC 14Y-10N</b> , AA; 04/01/2021; <b>SJ 10</b>
4/1/2021	S	<b>Ought to Pass with Amendment</b> 2021-0983s, <b>RC 14Y-10N</b> , MA; OT3rdg; 04/01/2021; <b>SJ 10</b>
4/13/2021	H	Introduced (in recess of) 04/09/2021 and referred to Labor, Industrial and Rehabilitative Services <b>HJ 7 P. 100</b>
5/5/2021	H	Public Hearing: 05/05/2021 01:00 pm Members of the public may attend using the following link: To join the webinar: <a href="https://www.zoom.us/j/91070566113">https://www.zoom.us/j/91070566113</a> / Executive session on pending legislation may be held throughout the day (time permitting) from the time the committee is initially convened.
5/26/2021	H	Executive Session: 05/26/2021 10:30 am Members of the public may attend using the following link: To join the webinar: <a href="https://www.zoom.us/j/99484571505">https://www.zoom.us/j/99484571505</a>
5/27/2021	H	Majority Committee Report: Ought to Pass with Amendment <b>#2021-1596h</b> (Vote 11-8; RC) <b>HC 26 P. 27</b>
5/27/2021	H	Minority Committee Report: Inexpedient to Legislate
6/4/2021	H	Amendment <b>#2021-1596h</b> : AA VV 06/04/2021 <b>HJ 9 P. 3</b>
6/4/2021	H	<b>Ought to Pass with Amendment</b> 2021-1596h: MA DV 201-171 06/03/2021 <b>HJ 9 P. 3</b>
6/10/2021	S	Sen. French Moved to Concur with the House Amendment, MA, VV; 06/10/2021; <b>SJ 19</b>
7/12/2021	H	Enrolled (in recess of) 06/24/2021
7/12/2021	S	Enrolled Adopted, VV, (In recess 06/24/2021); <b>SJ 20</b>
7/26/2021	S	Signed by the Governor on 07/23/2021; Chapter 0153
7/26/2021	S	I. Section 1 Effective as provided in Section 2
7/26/2021	S	II. Remainder Effective 07/23/2021

NH House

NH Senate



# Other Referrals

**Senate Inventory Checklist for Archives**

Bill Number: SB 137

Senate Committee: Commerce

Please include all documents in the order listed below and indicate the documents which have been included with an "X" beside

Final docket found on Bill Status

**Bill Hearing Documents: {Legislative Aides}**

Bill version as it came to the committee/

All Calendar Notices

Hearing Sign-up sheet(s)

Prepared testimony, presentations, & other submissions handed in at the public hearing

Hearing Report

Revised/Amended Fiscal Notes provided by the Senate Clerk's Office

**Committee Action Documents: {Legislative Aides}**

All amendments considered in committee (including those not adopted):

- amendment # 21-03705  - amendment # 21-09835

- amendment # 21-0705 - amendment # \_\_\_\_\_

Executive Session Sheet

Committee Report

**Floor Action Documents: {Clerk's Office}**

All floor amendments considered by the body during session (only if they are offered to the senate):

\_\_\_\_ - amendment # \_\_\_\_\_      \_\_\_\_ - amendment # \_\_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_ - amendment # \_\_\_\_\_      \_\_\_\_ - amendment # \_\_\_\_\_

**Post Floor Action: (if applicable) {Clerk's Office}**

\_\_\_\_ Committee of Conference Report (if signed off by all members. Include any new language proposed by the committee of conference):

\_\_\_\_ Enrolled Bill Amendment(s)

\_\_\_\_ Governor's Veto Message

**All available versions of the bill: {Clerk's Office}**

as amended by the senate

as amended by the house

final version

Completed Committee Report File Delivered to the Senate Clerk's Office By:

Aaron Jones  
Committee Aide

7/21/21  
Date

Senate Clerk's Office: [Signature]